IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: **78,957**

EC 19 1991

LERK. SOPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

THE WACKENHUT CORPORATION, a Florida corporation, and DELTA) AIR LINES, INC.,

Petitioners,

vs.

FELICE LIPPERT,

Respondent.

ON REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA, FOURTH DISTRICT, CASES NO. 90-0917 & 90-0932

PETITIONERS' INITIAL BRIEF ON THE MERITS

Bonita L. Kneeland, Esquire FOWLER, WHITE, GILLEN, BOGGS, VILLAREAL & BANKER, P.A. Attorneys for The Wackenhut corporation Post Office Box 1438 Tampa, Florida 33601 (813) 228-7411 Florida Bar No.: 607355

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Felice Lippert claimed that she lost a Louis Vuitton handbag containing approximately \$431,000 in mostly uninsured jewelry in the x-ray scanner at Palm Beach International Airport.' (R. 1562-1564)² Mrs. Lippert and her husband held tickets on a Delta Airlines flight to New York and had to pass through a security checkpoint before going to the gate.

Mrs. Lippert's complaint alleged that her property disappeared after going through the x-ray scanner while in the custody of Wackenhut Corp., a security company. Wackenhut, she claimed, was acting as an agent of Delta Airlines "for the purpose of check carry on baggage, security and passengers boarding Delta Airline flights from the terminal..." (R. 1562-1564)

Mrs. Lippert claimed that she placed her bag with its valuables on the conveyor belt for the x-ray, then proceeded through the magnetometer, (R. 648) Mrs. Lippert set off the alarm and had to go through the magnetometer a second time. (R. 78, 649) Her husband had the same experience when he followed her through

Albert Lippert, who was not the actual owner of the jewelry was dropped from the lawsuit. The Plaintiff/Appellee/Respondent, Felice Lippert, will be referred to as "the Plaintiff," or "Mrs. Lippert." The Defendants/Appellants/Petitioners, Delta Air Lines, Inc. and Wackenhut Corporation, will be referred to respectively as "Delta" and "Wackenhut" or collectively as "the Defendants."

All references to the record on appeal will be referred to by the capital letter "R" followed by the page in the record. All emphasis is added unless noted to be in the original. The symbol "app." refers to the attached appendix.

the equipment. (R. 78, 155-156) When Mrs. Lippert walked forward to collect her portable vault of jewelry at the end of the conveyor, it was missing. (R. 97)

After Lippert reported that her jewels and Louis Vuitton bag were missing, both Delta and sheriff department personnel arrived. The restrooms in the area and the plane were checked. (R. 961, 1089) A Delta supervisor called/wired to the destinations of other planes which had left the airport around that time. (R. 1006, 1028) Although Lippert suggest that a thief could have utilized a nearby stairway, there was no evidence that anyone was seen.

Out of all the valuable jewelry allegedly carried in the satchel, only one piece was **insured.** (R. **755**, 2452) Both Mrs. Lippert and her spouse were experienced travelers. traveled approximately once a month, her husband traveled two to three times a month. She always traveled with her (R. 113) jewelry and had never had a prior problem. (R. 117, 769) Although Mrs. Lippert and her husband knew she was carrying a substantial amount of valuable, uninsured jewelry, neither took precautions, and did not obtaining excess valuation insurance. (R. 776, 793, 795, 797) Mrs. Lippert never gave this bag to her husband to quard while she went through the metal detector. She never asked her spouse to keep her bag and send it through the

Curiously, only this single, insured piece of jewelry was ever recovered. (R. 19) Mrs. Lippert testified at trial that the police had recovered these earrings which were insured for \$75,000 (although altered because the "rare Burma rubies" in the center had been replaced with yellow diamonds) and that they had been returned to her. (R. 661)

scanner after she was free to wait for it on the "sterile" side. (R. 773)

There was no testimony that either Wackenhut or Delta personnel took the jewelry. (R. 239, 471-472, 1090) Lippert's expert readily admitted that there was absolutely no indication that any Delta or Wackenhutemployees were involved with this loss. (R. 473) Further, there was no evidence there had ever been any prior baggage theft. (R. 389, 1044) The area of the checkpoint is generally staffed with five Wackenhut guards. 117) At the time of this incident, there were six people on duty: a stair guard and five people at the security checkpoint. (R. 238, 421) The Wackenhut personnel who review the bag scanner rotate off this position every thirty minutes to insure their unbroken attention to the job. (R. 435-436, 585) One sheriff's department deputy was also in the area and was six to eight feet away when the bag was taken. (R. 99, 421-423, 586, 587, 997) The scanning equipment is owned by Delta and is located on property which Delta leases from the airport authority. (R. 227, 1142)

There is no one stationed at the end of the magnetometer to watch who picks up a particular parcel or property. (R. 236, 260, 276) The evidence established that there is no FAA requirement to do this and, in any event, it would be impractical because one cannot see past the scanner machine to determine who placed any given item on the conveyor belt in the first place. (R. 279, 427, 597, 598, 610, 611, 619) The Lipperts did not expect any Delta or Wackenhut employee to be at the end of the conveyor belt. (R. 143)

Similarly, there is no mirror arrangement overhead for passengers to try to keep track of their bags. Again, there is no FAA requirement to do so. (R. 602) Additionally, the testimony established that overhead mirrors would create a hazard by diverting people's attention while walking through the metal detector and therefore would make them more likely to trip or bump into other people. (R. 602)

The FAA conducts both announced and unannounced inspections several times per year. (R. 574, 577, 588) The checkpoint procedures and the scanning equipment always passed these inspections. (R. 576, 589) At the time of this incident in 1986, scanning equipment was state of the art. The FAA the representative at trial, a man with seventeen years' experience, said that Delta's operation of its security checkpoint was as good or better than most carriers. (R. 607) Approximately 2,700 to 2,800 people (R. 1037) go through this checkpoint daily, or 2,966,500per **year.** (R. 1059, 1060) In the eleven years since the airport opened, more than 32,521,000 people had gone through this checkpoint and there had never been any prior incident of theft of loss. (R. 289, 1044, 1061)

The airline <u>TICKET</u> which Mrs. Lippert had purchased provided:

DELTA AIRLINES' CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

The following conditions of contract supersede the Conditions of Contract on the reverse side of the Passenger's Coupon **and** apply on all flight segments via Delta Airlines.

1. <u>Definitions</u> - As used in this contract,

"ticket" means this passenger ticket and baggage check of which these conditions and notices form part: "carriage" is equivalent to "transportation"; "baggage" means any article or other property of passengers which is acceptable for transportation under the conditions of contract stated herein, whether checked in the cargo compartment or carried in the cabin of the aircraft: "Delta ticket office" means a ticket sales location of Delta or the office of one of its appointed Travel printed "tariffs" Agents: mean electronically stored rules and regulations established by Delta governing the acceptance and carriage of Passengers and baggage including applicable fares, rates and charges for such carriage; "WARSAW CONVENTION" means the Convention for the Unification of Certain Rules Relating to International Carriage by Air signed at Warsaw, 12th October 1929, and applicable amendments thereto. (R.2219 and App. p.9).

. . .

7.C. Baggage Claim Limits and Procedures

(1) DOMESTIC (including U.S.A.-Puerto Rico) Total liability for each passenger's checked baggage--including liability for provable direct or consequential damages--is limited to \$1250.00 in the event of loss, damage or delay, unless a higher value is declared in advance and additional charges are paid. No action shall be maintained far any lass, damage, or delay of checked baggage unless notice is given in writing to the carriers involved within 21 days from the date of the incident and unless the action is commenced within 1 year from date of the Delta assumes responsibility or liability for unchecked baggage. Special rules may apply to valuables and to fragile or perishable articles. (R.2223 and App. p.10).

- - -

NOTICE OF BAGGAGE LIABILITY LIMITATIONS

Liability for loss, delay or damage to baggage is limited as follows unless a higher value is declared in advance and additional charges are paid: (1) For most international travel (including domestic portions of

international journeys) to approximately \$9.07 per pound (\$20.00 per kilo) for checked baggage and \$400 per passenger for unchecked baggage; (2) For travel wholly between U.S. points to \$1,250 per passenger on most carriers (a few have lower limits). Excess valuation may not be declared on certain types of valuable articles. Carriers assume no liability for fragile or perishable articles. Further information may be obtained from the carrier. (R.2207 and App. p.6).

NOTICE OF INCORPORATED TERMS

Air transportation to be provided between points in the U.S. (including its overseas territories and possessions) is subject to the individual contract terms (including rules, regulations, tariffs and conditions) of the transporting air carriers, which are herein incorporated by reference and made part of the contract of carriage. Foreign air transportation is governed by applicable tariffs on file with the U.S. and other governments. Incorporated terms may include, but are not restricted to:

- 1. Limits on liability for personal injury or death:
- 2. Limits on liability forbagaae. including fragile or perishable acods and availability of excess valuation coverage;
- 3. Claims restrictions, including time periods in which passengers must file a claim or bring an action against the air carrier;
- 4. Rights of the air carrier to change terms of the contract:
- 5. Rules on reconfirmation of reservations, check-in times, and refusal to carry; and
- 6. Rights of the air carrier and limits on liability for delay or failure to perform service, including schedule changes, substitution of alternate air carriers or aircraft, and rerouting.

You can obtain additional information on items 1 through 6 above at any U.S. location where the transporting air carrier's tickets are sold.

You have the right to inspect the full text of each transporting air carrier's rules at its airport and city

ticket offices. You also have the right, upon request, to receive free of charge the full text of the applicable terms incorporated by reference from each of the transporting air carriers. Information on ordering the full text of each carrier's terms is available at any U.S. location where the air carrier's tickets are sold. (R.2217-2218 and App. pp.7-8).

* * *

Delta's published airline TARIFF states, in pertinent part:

J) BAGGAGE LIABILITY a) Of abolt to

DL shall be liable for the loss of, damage to, or delay in the delivery of a fare-paying passenger's baggage, or other property (including carry-on baggage, if tendered to DL's in flight personnel for storage during flight or otherwise delivered into the custody of DL). Such liability, if any, for the loss, damage or delay in the delivery of a fare-paying passenger's baggage or other property (whether checked or otherwise delivered into the custody of DL), shall be limited to an amount equal to the value of the property, plus consequential damages, if any, and shall not exceed the maximum limitation of USD <u>1250.00</u> for all liability for fare-paying passenger (unless the passenger elects to pay for higher liability as provided for in paragraph 3) below). The passenger shall not be automatically entitled to USD 1,250.00 but must prove the value of losses or damages. Actual value for reimbursement of lost or damaged property shall be determined by the documented original purchased price less any applicable depreciation for prior usage. These limitations also shall apply to baggage or personal property accepted by DL for temporary storage at a city or airport ticket office or elsewhere **before** or after the passenger's trip.

EXCEPTION:

The above maximum liability shall be waived for an individual claimant where it can be shown that with respect to that claimant DL failed to provide notice of limited liability for baggage.

NOTE:

Any failure to enforce the maximum limitations of liability at USD 1250.00 shall not be construed as a waiver of the right to limit liability at some higher amount.

- b) When the transportation is over the lines of DL and one or more carriers with a limitation of liability of more than USD 1250.00 for each fare-paying passenger and responsibility for loss, damage, or delay in delivery of baggage cannot be determined, the liability limit of USD 1250.00 for each fare-paying passenger will be applied to all carriers.
- c) DL shall be liable for fragile and perishable personal property, including baggage, not contained within a suitcase or other container customarily intended for use in the personal transportation of clothing, unless the passenger has executed a document releasing DL from liability from the fragile or perishable nature of a particular item, as provided in paragraph D) above.

2) Exclusions From Liability

e) DL is <u>not responsible</u> for <u>jewelry</u>, cash, camera equipment, or other similar valuable items contained in checked or unchecked baggage, unless **excess** valuation has been purchased. These items should be carried by the passenger.

(R.2228-2229 and App. pp.13-14).

Based upon the applicable tariffs and facts of this case, Wackenhut and Delta filed motions for partial summary judgment on the grounds that their liability, if any, was limited to a maximum of \$1,250. (R. 2105-2158, 2198-2229) The trial court initially entered a partial summary judgment for Wackenhut and Delta finding that the tariff formed a basis for the contract of carriage and had the force and effect of law. (R. 2274-2276) The trial court ruled that Mrs. Lippert had delivered her property into Delta's custody, through its agent Wackenhut, and had thereby invoked the liability

limitation. (R. 2273)

By the time of trial, a new judge was assigned to the case. The trial court, with this second judge presiding, permitted the jury to consider the total amount of damages claimed by Mrs. Lippert and further instructed the jury to apportion the damages between the Defendants. (R. 1333) Throughout the trial, this judge repeatedly remarked that he was bound to enter final judgment in a maximum amount of \$1,250 notwithstanding whatever verdict might be returned. (R. 2454, 286, 498, 1333) Over Wackenhut and Delta's objection, the jury was instructed that a bailment for mutual benefit was formed. (R. 1295-1303) This led the judge to instruct the jury that the Defendants could be held liable for ordinary negligence rather than requiring a finding of gross negligence. (R. 1479-1480)

The jury returned a \$431,609 verdict for Mrs. Lippert which found Delta 65% at fault and Wackenhut 35% liable. (R. 2680-2681) In the Final Judgment, dated March 1, 1990, the trial court acknowledged the partial summary judgment limiting recovery to \$1,250. (R.2794-2795). The court further ruled that the damages and liability were so interwoven in the case that it was tried on both issues. (R.2794-2795). The judge then awarded final judgment for \$431,609 in favor of the Plaintiff, but stayed the award to allow the Plaintiff time to appeal the partial summary judgment. (R.2794-2795). Following various post-trial motions the trial court sua sponte vacated the earlier partial summary judgment and entered final judgment for Mrs. Lippert in the full amount of the

verdict. (R. 2810-2811)

On appeal Delta and Wackenhut challenged, inter alia, the jury instructions as well as the decision of the trial court to sua sponte vacate the earlier partial summary judgment. It was argued that the trial court erred in ruling that the security checkpoint created a bailment for mutual benefit (which was subject to ordinary negligence standards) rather than a gratuitous bailment by operation of law (requiring a finding of gross negligence to impose liability). It was also asserted that the tariff and contractual limitation of liability clearly established a \$1,250 cap for Mrs. Lippert's claim which applied to any type of baggage or property carried by a traveler. This restriction was argued to be appropriate because it is unlikely that anyone other than a ticketed passenger will have substantial valuables in any of their baggage and, further, frequently airports and/or Airlines permit only passengers to proceed beyond the security checkpaint.

The Fourth District Court of Appeal reversed the final judgment and remanded for a new trial. The court further ruled that the original partial summary judgment limiting Wackenhut and Delta's liability to \$1,250 was erroneous. The court explained that in its view a bailment for mutual benefit, rather than a bailment as a matter of law, was created at the time the passenger relinquishes possession of hand luggage when approaching the magnetometer at the security checkpoint. The court disagreed with the proposition that the bailment was gratuitous simply because it required by federal regulation. The Fourth District was

specifically held that "the tariff and its limitations on liability do not apply where the passenger is forced to relinquish possession of his or her valuables for the purpose of a security magnetometer check."

In issuing its opinion, the Fourth District certified the following question:

WHERE A POSTED TARIFF IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE TICKET FOR CARRIAGE ON A COMMON CARRIER LIMITS FOR CHECKED BAGGAGE OR LIABILITY BAGGAGE ULTIMATELY DELIVERED TO A FLIGHT ATTENDANT FOR STOWAGE INTHE CABIN, BUT THEPASSENGER CHOOSES INSTEAD TO RETAIN CUSTODY PACKAGE, PURSE, HANDBAG, ETC., AND PASSENGER IS THEN REQUIRED TO RELINQUISH POSSESSION OF THE ITEM FOR THE PURPOSES OF x-RAY OR OTHER EXAMINATION OR INSPECTION, DOES THE CARRIER'S TARIFF LIMITS ITS LIABILITY, OR THAT OF ITS AGENTS, FOR ORDINARY NEGLIGENCE RESULTING IN LOSS TO THE PASSENGER DURING THE X-RAY OR INSPECTION PROCESS?

A copy of the opinion of the Fourth District Court of Appeal is attached to this Brief as Appendix A.

CERTIFIED OUESTION

WHERE A POSTED TARIFF IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE TICKET FOR CARRIAGE ON A COMMON CARRIER LIMITS LIABILITY FOR CHECKED BAGGAGE OR BAGGAGE ULTIMATELY DELIVERED TO A FLIGHT ATTENDANT FOR STOWAGE IN THE CABIN, BUT THE PASSENGER CHOOSES INSTEAD TO RETAIN CUSTODY OF A PURSE, HANDBAG, ETC., PACKAGE, AND PASSENGER IS THEN REQUIRED TO RELINQUISH POSSESSION OF THE ITEM FOR THE PURPOSES OF X-RAY OR OTHER EXAMINATION OR INSPECTION, DOES THE CARRIER'S TARIFF LIMITS ITS LIABILITY, OR THAT OF ITS AGENTS, FOR ORDINARY NEGLIGENCE RESULTING IN LOSS TO THE PASSENGER DURING THE X-RAY OR INSPECTION PROCESS?

<u>DELTA'S AND WACKENHUT'S</u> ANSWER TO CERTIFIED OUESTION

DELTA'S AND ITS AGENT, WACKENHUT'S \$1,250 LIMIT OF LIABILITY IS ESTABLISHED BY THE CLEAR AND UNAMBIGUOUS TERMS OF THE CONTRACT OF CARRIAGE (TICKET) WHICH INCORPORATED, BY REFERENCE, THE LAW AS SET FORTH IN DELTA'S VALIDLY FILED TARIFF. FURTHERMORE, ANY BAILMENT CREATED BY THE SCREENING OF PROPERTY BEING CARRIED INTO THE STERILE AREA OF AN AIRPORT ARISES BY FORCE AND OPERATION OF LAW AND CONSTITUTES A CONSTRUCTIVE OR GRATUITOUS BAILMENT FOR WHICH A GROSS NEGLIGENCE STANDARD APPLIES.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Airline tariffs and tickets are established pursuant to federal law and are controlled by federal law. The Fourth District prejudicially erred when it refused to apply Delta's tariff and ticket limitations in the instant case. The filed tariff, as well as the contract of carriage between Lippert and Delta which was printed on the ticket, unambiguously established a \$1,250 limit of liability applicable to all property which a passenger intends to carry onto the aircraft. The limitation applies at any stage of embarkment when a ticketed passenger's carry-on items are tendered to Delta or its agents, including the federally mandated security check.

The court further erred when it ruled that the federally mandated security check of passengers and property they carry onto aircraft creates a bailment for mutual benefit rather than a gratuitous bailment as an operation of law. The erroneous ruling that a mutual bailment was created enabled Lippert to recover against Delta and Wackenhut upon a substantially more lenient burden of proof (simple negligence rather than gross negligence). This error was compounded by the use of improper jury instructions which did not inform the jury about the law governing gratuitous bailments but instead instructed the jury only about a mutual bailment and its standard of care.

ARGUMENT

<u>I.</u>

DELTA'S AND ITS AGENT'S \$1,250 LIMIT OF LIABILITY IS ESTABLISHED BY THE CLEAR AND UNAMBIGUOUS TERMS OF THE CONTRACT OF CARRIAGE (TICKET) WHICH INCORPORATED, BY REFERENCE, THE LAW AS SET FORTH IN DELTA'S VALIDLY FILED TARIFF.

A. THE TARIFF:

Chapter 49 of the United States Code requires an air carrier to file a tariff. The record unequivocally established that Delta filed, pursuant to the federal statute, a tariff with the Civil Aeronautics Board (C.A.B.) which included a plainly worded limitation of liability for all passengers' property ("baggage") whether checked, unchecked, or otherwise delivered into the custody of Delta Airlines.

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