FILED
SID J. WHITE
JAN 13 1992

IN THE SUPREME COUNCIERS SUPREME COURT
STATE OF FLORIDA

By

Chief Deputy Clerk

CASE NO. 78,957

ON REVIEW FROM DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA FOURTH DISTRICT 4th DCA CASE NOS. 90-0917 90-0932

WACKENHUT CORPORATION, and DELTA AIRLINES, INC.,

Petitioners/Cross-Respondents,

٧S

FELICE LIPPERT.

Respondent/Cross-Petitioner.

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF

Jos. D. Farish, Jr.
FARISH, FARISH, & ROMANI
Denco Bldg., 316 Banyan Blvd.
P.O. Box 3887
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402
(407) 659-3500
Attorneys for: Respondent/Cross-Petitioner
Florida Bar No. 0023740

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Based on the facts situation that arose in this case, the limitation of liability which is established by tariffs that airlines file along with their contracts of carriage, was inapplicable. As is clearly indicated on the back of the tickets the Petitioner issued in this case, the limitation of liability is in effect for baggage, and goes on to define baggage as property which is checked in the cargo compartment of the plane or carried into the cabin of the aircraft. In this case, neither of those situations occurred as the Respondent never checked her baggage, and the baggage never made it into the cabin of the plane. Therefore, it was not become and the limitation of liability should not apply, as was correctly decided by the Fourth District Court of Appeal.

In addition thereto, it is clear that a bailment was created when the Respondent was forced to relinquish her property to the Petitioners at the scanning checkpoint. Both the Petitioners and the Respondent received a benefit from the bailment that was created. As such, a mutual bailment was created in this case, not, a gratuitous bailment; as was argued by the Petitioners. With such a mutual bailment in existence, the law of Florida prescribes that the standard of care which is applicable is that of ordinary negligence. The Trial Court so charged the jury on that standard and the Fourth District was correct in determining that the Trial Court was correct in making that determination.

However, the Fourth District was incorrect in its decision to order a new trial in this case, as no prejudicial error was committed by the Trial Court to warrant such a reversal. The Trial Court made various statements throughout the course of the trial. which may have been incorrect, however, those statements which were made to Petitioners' counsel outside the presence of the jury had no effect whatsoever on the verdict that was returned, Case law in Florida is clear that when an error that is committed has no prejudicial effect or would warrant no decision different than the nne already obtained, there are no grounds for the ordering of a new trial. As such, the Fourth District Court of Appeal was in error when it so ruled and that order should be reversed and the verdict and judgment of the Trial Court should be upheld.

VII.

ARGUMENT

I.

AS WAS CORRECTLY DETERMINED BY THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL. THE \$1,250.00 LIMIT OF LIABILITY AS ESTABLISHED BY TARIFFS OF **AIRLINES** AND THEIR AGENTS, WAS INAPPLICABLE TO THE INSTANT CASE DUE TO THE FACTS OF THIS CASE AS THEY EXISTED.

In their Initial Brief as well as in the trial before the Circuit Court and the Appeal before the Fourth District, the Petitioners have consistently tried to rely on the tariff to limit their liability for the loss of the Respondent's property. is no dispute that, pursuant to 49 U.S.C.A. Section 1301 et seq., an airline's tariff can constitute part of the contract between the airline and its passengers. Nor is there any dispute over whether or not Petitioner Delta correctly incorporated the terms of that contract into the ticket issued to the Respondent in the instant case. What is in dispute is that under the facts of this case that limitation of liability is inapplicable. An airline is permitted to limit its liability for lust or damaged baggage pursuant to 14 C.F.R. 254 (1986) Domestic Baggage Liability. That would hold true in the instant case. if this was a case of lost or damaged baggage. It is not. On the back of Delta's own ticket, baggage is defined as

"Any article or other property of passengers which is acceptable fur transportation under the conditions of carriage stated herein whether check& in the compartment or carried in \$;he cabin of the aircraft (Fetitioner's Initial. Brief, App. 9)

However, the bag that was lost by the Respondent never attained the status of baggage. Under the definition on Delta's own ticket, a

bag can become baggage in one of two ways. Either icy having it checked and receiving a claim ticket for it, or by carrying the bag onto the plane. Neither of these actions took place with regard to the bag that was lost by the Respondent.

The fact that the bag in question was not checked is nut in dispute. The Petitioners seem to have taken the position that since the Respondent intended to carry the bag on the plane, and since she was a ticketed passenger, that her bag automatically became baggage, thus the limitation on liability should apply. During the trial however, Barbara Seifert, who was the customer service supervisor for Petitioner Delta on the date of this incident, was asked by counsel for Petitioner Wackenhut about the bag that was lost in this case-

- Q. "Well we aren't dealing with baggage in this case are we ma "am?"
- A. "That is correct". (R. 1010).

So by the admission of Petitioners' own personnel, the 'bagthat was lost by the Respondent was net baggage. Yet the Petitioners insist that their liability should be limited to \$1,250.00 as if this were 'baggage

In fashioning their argument, the Petitioners have repeatedly cited Federal laws and regulations as a basis for their position. Apparently, the Petitioners feel that if they beat on the issue of Federal law long enough, that they will either convince this Court that under these facts that Federal law should apply, or that they will raise enough of a question to attempt, to hoist this matter before the United States Supreme Court. In doing so, the Petitioners have overlooked what the Fourth District Court of

Appeal actually decided. 'That court did not dispute the Federal law regarding tariffs and contracts of carriage, it merely recognized that those limitations on liability are inapplicable to the facts of this case.

the Fourth District's The Petitioners argue that interpretation of baggage, was a strained interpretation, and unrealistic. When this factual situation i.s examined completely though, it becomes apparent that; the direct opposite of the Petitioners' statement is true. At the terminal in question, ticketed as well as non-ticketed persons were permitted to pass through the screening into the sterile area. (R. 365-366). Certainly if a non-ticketed person (or any of the general public) had gone through the screening process, they would have been screened and would have had to put any articles they were carrying through the X-Ray machine as well. Would the Petitioners then be claiming that the mere placing of those bags in the screening process would make them baggage as well'? To do so would clearly cause a strained interpretation of the definition of the word The same is true in the situation where a ticketed baggage. passenger is accompanied by a non-ticketed person. If after going through the screening devices the passenger decides that. she does not want to bring a certain bag on the trip and leaves it with the non-ticketed person, the bag left behind certainly has not become baggage. It has to reach the plane or be checked before it becomes baggage.

This is the precise ruling made by the court in Tremaroli V. Delta Airlines, 458 N.Y.S.2d 159, 162 (New York City Civ. Court In Tremaroli, the Plaintiff placed his bag on the conveyor belt fur it to be screened by the X-Hay machine while he was going through the magnetometer. Id. at 160. When Ire got to the end of the belt he picked up a bag, the only one on the belt which resembled his, and proceeded onto the plane. Id. While waiting for. the plane to take off he discovered that the bag was not his, so he returned to the scanner only to find out that his bag was The court held that under those facts the tariff missing. Id. filed by the airline to limit their liability was inapplicable. Id. at 162. The court, held that a contract of carriage was never' established since the bag was never placed on the airplane. Id.

In the instant, case, the Respondent took the same course of action as did the Plaintiff in Tremaroli except that she didn't, take the wrong bag and walk away, there was simply no bag to be retrieved. (R. 649-650). The only possible difference factually is that the Plaintiff in Tremaroli may have been to some extent. contributorily negligent. The jury in the instant case found the Respondent was not contributorily negligent, under appropriate instructions by the Trial Court. (R. 1480). Otherwise the two cases are virtually identical.

The Petitioners have tried to enforce their position by citing to a Federal Court case, <u>Baker v. Lansdell Protective Agency</u>, 590 F. Supp. 165 (S.D. N.Y. 1984). In <u>Baker</u>, a passenger bound fur London from New York claimed that jewelry had disappeared from her bag between the time she handed the bag to a security agent for

passage through an X-Ray scanner, and the time the bag was returned to her on the other side of the screening area. <u>Id</u>. at 167. The court in <u>Baker</u> granted the Defense's Motion for a Partial Summary <u>Judgment limiting the Defendant's liability</u> for any loss that may have occurred. <u>Id</u>. at 171.

The Baker case however is factually distinguishable from the instant, case in several aspects. First and foremost, being that it was an international flight, it was governed by the Warsaw Convention a different regulation, not by the Federal law governing contracts of carriage and airline tariffs. The court in Baker noted that the Convention could only be read as applying to the loss of personal items when the loss occurs on board 'the aircraft in the course in any of the operations of embarking or disembarking. Id. at 168. The court also held that because the Federal statute required all persons and property to be screened for weapons before boarding aircraft, that going through the screening process in that, case constituted part of the operations of embarking. Id. at 169. However, there was a large factual difference between the scenario in Baker and the situation in the instant case. In Baker, the security check point, was located in an area to which only passengers and not the general public were permitted access. Id. (emphasis added). The court made a point of noting that:

"Under these circumstances, where Baker was engaging in an activity which is a legally mandated prerequisite to boarding an airplane. Where she was undergoing the required security check at the express direction of Defendant's employees and in a part of the terminal restricted to passengers with tickets, it is appropriate to characterize Baker as being in the course of one of the operations of embarking". Id. at 170.

The area the Respondent was entering however, was not one that was restricted solely to passengers in the course of the operation of Anyone, passengers, visitors, even drifters and/or embarkingjewel thieves were entitled to pass through the security check point in question in this case. It would be totally illogical and nonsensical to hold that people wha had no intention of ever boarding the plane could be engaged in the process of embarking an airplane. Likewise, it would be just as nonsensical fur two people to pass through the scanner, one a ticketed passenger and one a visitor, and for one to be held to be embarking the plane and the other not. Under the Baker case facts, a person passing through the screening device could rightfully be held to be in the process of embarking the plane. But as the facts exist in the instant case that holding is simply inapplicable. The tariff in this case is to limit liability for loss during transportation, not loss that occurs in the waiting, greeting and/or holding area.

The Petitioners then incorrectly rely an the Federal case of Feature Enterprises. Inc. v. Continental Airlines, 745 F. Supp. 198 (S.D. N.Y. 1990), in support of their position that the tariff should be applicable in this case. In Feature Enterprises however, the bag that was lost by the Plaintiff containing his jewelry, was checked at curbside with a skycap. Id. at 199. Based on those facts and the tariff which was correctly filed. by Continental Airlines, the court, granted a summary judgment limiting the airline's liability to \$1,250.00. Id. at 201. The Petitioners miss the point when they continue to argue that in this case the bag containing the jewelry was baggage even though it never made

it into the cargo compartment of the plane. This is so because the facts in Feature Enterprises clearly indicate the Sag was checked. When referring back to definition of baggage on Petitioner Delta's own ticket, that language specifically refers to property whether checked or carried in the cabin of the aircraft. Again, under the factual scenario of Feature Enterprises, that, court was correct in applying the tariff in limiting liability to \$1,250.00. That is simply not the same situation as exists in the instant case, and the Fourth District correctly ruled that the tariff should not be applicable.

Finally, in their Initial Brief on the Merits, Petitioners are attempting to do something which they were unable to do at, the trial level.. That is namely to try to convince this Court that somehow the Respondent was comparatively negligent for losing her jewelry and that should be held against her. That matter was specifically addressed at the trial court level, and the jury found as a matter of fact that, the Respondent had not Seen negligent; in any way in her actions pursuant to the Trial Court standard jury instructions. (R. 1480, R. 1496-97). Yet for some reason the Petitioners continue to harp on the fact that her actions fall within the area of risk that the government has decided passengers must accept. That, in spite of the language on their own tickets, and their own policies that. passengers should nut. check bags containing large amount of valuables and that they should bring them on the plane themselves. In other words, they have put the passenger carrying valuables in a catch 2% situation. The Petitioners tell them that, if they check the baggage, the

LAW OFFICES, FARISH, FARISH & ROMANI, WEST PALM BEACH, FLO

Petitioners are not going to be responsible for their loss if it's over \$1,250.00. In addition, if they bring them on the plane and they are lost somehow on the plane, they are not going to be responsible for over \$1,250.00. Now what the Petitioners are trying to argue, is that from the moment you step past; the screening process your loss is going to be limited to \$1,250.00. That is simply a strained Limitation of liability. Nowhere in any of the Federal regulations did Congress propose that airlines and security companies did not have to act with reasonable care in handling the property of their passengers. To uphold the argument as put forth by the Petitioners would change that, and give them carte lianches to do whatever they please with regard to their passengers property. That, is legally and morally wrong, and is simply not what Congress intended. nor is it what, the Fourth District Court of Appeal or the Trial Court and jury found.

II.

PETITIONERS DELTA AND WACKENHUT, RECEIVED BENEFITS FROM THE BAILMENT WHICH WAS CREATED BY THE SCREENING OF PROPERTY AT THE X-RAY SCANNING CHECKPOINT, DESPITE THE FACT THAT THEY WERE ORDERED TO ERECT SUCH A CHECKPOINT BY FEDERAL LAW, THUS THE STANDARD OF ORDINARY NEGLIGENCE WHICH WAS APPLIED BY THE TRIAL COURT AND THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL WAS CORRECT.

It is generally recognized that, bailments are classified into one of three categories: 1) Those for the sole benefit of the bailor; 2) Those for the sole benefit of the bailee; and 31 Those for the benefit of both parties. 5 Fla.Jur.2d, Bailments, Section 3. 'These classifications are important, as the difference between them determine the standard of care which a bailee owes to the bailor. while maintaining possession of the bailor's property.

Clermont Marine Sales. Inc. v. Harmon, 347 So.2d 839 (Fla. 2d DCA 1977); Marine Office-Appleton and Cox Corp. v. Aqua Dynamics, Inc., 295 So.2d 370 (Fla. 3d DCA 1975). In this case the dispute is whether or not the bailment that occurred was one for the mutual benefit of the parties. If it was, then the Petitioners should be held to a standard of ordinary care and be liable for ordinary negligence. ITT Consumer Services Corp. v. Travelers Indemn Co., 256 So.2d 74 (Fla. 3d DCA 1971), cert. den. 263 So.2d 229.

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